The Verb: Past Simple, Past Continuous
Simple past

	Affirmative
	Interrogative
	Negative

	I broke
	did I break?
	I did not break

	you broke
	did you break?
	you did not break

	he/she broke     
	did he/ she/it 

break?
	he/she/it did not 

break

	we broke
	did we break?
	we did not break

	they broke
	did they break?
	they did not (didn’t)

 break


Formation

As a general rule, the past simple tense is formed by adding the ending -ed to the verb infinitive.

Use:

The simple past tense is generally used to talk about past events: short finished actions and happenings, longer situations, and repeated events. It is often used with references to finished periods and moments of time.

Past events

1. We use the simple past to express a single accomplished action in the past. The time of the action is usually indicated by adverbs and adverbial phrases such as yesterday, the day before yesterday, the previous day/week/month/year, two /three/ a few/some days/weeks/years/ centuries ago, last week/month /year etc.:

A burglar broke into our house last week.

I heard of it through a friend of mine a few days ago.

He first became a member of parliament in 1991.

Note:  The time of the action may be implied in the situation through the mention of the place or other attending circumstances: 

– Did you buy anything in Paris? (the speaker knows when she was in Paris)

– Yes, I bought clothing and a lot of toys for my little daughter.

Note: Sometimes the mention of the time or the place of the action appears unnecessary because the action is definite in the mind of the speaker and the hearer:

“Did you speak to her?” “No, I didn’t dare. She looked so serious.”

2. We can also use the simple past in narration to express a succession of actions in the past:

It was a hot summer evening. Brenda took a bath, dressed and then phoned John’s parents.

He opened the drawer, took out a revolver and rushed out of the room.

These actions may be either short finished actions or actions of some duration occupying a whole period of time:

She stayed with them for about three months and then decided to move to Belgium.

She looked at him for a long time and then shrugged.

He spent all his youth in Russia.

Time relation

3. We may find the simple past in complex sentences introduced by when, as or while conjunctions when the two actions are fully simultaneous:

He spoke French when he was in Paris.

Frank learnt Japanese when he studied at the University.

He didn’t say a word as we drove home.

While he lived in Germany he got to know a family of musicians.

4. We use the simple past to say that one thing happened after another:

When Father entered the room, my sister put the receiver down.

She stopped playing the piano when Soames came in.

Repeated events

5. The simple past is used to express permanent states or recurrent actions in the past. The latter is generally supported by frequency adverbs: often, never, now and again, sometimes, etc.:

He lived by the sea – in an old and deserted hut.

His father was a famous doctor.

The couple often went to discos when they were on holiday.

Regularly every summer, he opened an exhibition of his pictures.

Note: In English there are special means of expressing a recurrent or permanent action in the past. They are ‘used to’ and ‘would + infinitive.’ ‘used to’ expresses a past habit or situation that no longer exists:

When he was much younger, he didn’t use to believe in God.

Some years ago there used to be a nice oak tree here. (a permanent state in the past)

He would get up early in the morning and go for a walk in the woods.

A period of time now over

6. The simple past is used to express an action which occupied a whole period of time now over. The period of time is usually indicated by means of ‘for phrases’, during or all day, all night and the like:

“How long did you stay in Paris?” “For about a month.”

He worked in the bank for two years and then decided to quit it.

I was ill for a week and during that week I ate nothing.

Future actions viewed from the past

7. The simple past is used to express a future action viewed from the past in a) time clauses, b) conditional clauses, c) concessive clauses d) object clauses after to see (that), to take care (that), to make sure (that). Future- in- the Past is usually used in the principal clause:

a) We visited all the museums before we left the cit;.

b) I asked him not to worry if I was late;

c) Even if he didn’t want to listen to me, I would try to speak to him;

d) He promised he would take care (that) no harm came to her.

Past Continuous

	Affirmative
	Interrogative
	Negative

	I was working
	was I working?
	I was not working

	you were working
	were you working?
	you were not working

	he/she/it was working
	was he/she/it working?
	he/she/it wasn’t working

	we were working
	were we working?
	we weren’t working

	they were working
	were they working?
	they weren’t working


Formation

The past continuous tense is formed by the past tense of the verb to be + participle I.

Use:

The past continuous is chiefly used for past actions which continued for some time but whose exact limits are not known and are not important:

He was reading a book when I came home.

Used without a time expression it can indicate gradual development:

It was getting dark and we decided to turn back.

Around a particular past time

1. The past continuous is used to say that something was in progress (going on) around a particular past time:

When they arrived, we were still laying the table.

We entered our own flat. I picked up two letters which were lying on the floor.

2. It is used to express an action going on at a given period of time in the past:

This time last year they were traveling round Europe.

They were cleaning the basement from 7.00 till 9.00 yesterday.

What were you doing before you came here.

Note: Sometimes the past continuous is found in apparently parallel actions:

Between one and two I was doing the shopping and walking the dog.

Annoying habits

3. The Past Continuous with always, continually, constantly expresses a frequently repeated past action which often annoys the speaker:

He was always ringing me up at a very late hour.

I didn’t like him – he was continually borrowing money.

Time relation

4. We may find the simple past and the past continuous used in different combinations with each other.

A complex sentence with a time clause introduced by the conjunction as:

a) The actions of the two clauses may be fully simultaneous.

The simple past is commonly found in both clauses.

As he got older he got more optimistic.

As the tree grew, its leaves turned brown.

Note: A continuous form is usually used for longer ‘background’ action or situation (was walking, are having, were playing;):
It was raining as I was walking up the hill towards the station at six o’clock on a Saturday.

But as and while can be used with a simple tense, especially with a verb like sit, stand, lie, grow etc. which refers to a continuous action or state:

As I sat reading the paper, the door burst open.

b) The actions of the principal and subordinate clauses may be partially simultaneous. The action of the subordinate clause serves as a ‘background’ for the action of the principal clause which is usually a shorter accomplished action. The simple past is found in the principal clause and the past continuous in the subordinate clause:

As I was walking in the street, I saw Bob.

As we were leaving home, the telephone rang.

c) The actions of the two clauses may form a succession. The simple past is found in both clauses:

As I turned back into the room a gust of wind crashed the door shut behind me.

As the sun rose, the birds began to sing.

5 Time clauses introduced by when:

a) The two actions may be fully simultaneous. We find the simple past in both clauses:

When he lived in that small town his friends often visited him.

His parents died when he was twelve.

b) The actions can be partially simultaneous (the action/situation of the principal clause serves as a background for the action of a when clause which is a short accomplished action). The past continuous is found in the principal clause and the past simple in the subordinate clause:

It was raining when we arrived

When I saw him in the street, he was arguing with an elderly man.

c) A when clause may serves to introduce a longer ‘background’ action or situation, which is/was going on when something else happens/happened:

He hurt his back when he was working in the garden.

My boss doesn’t/ didn’t like to be interrupted when he is/was having an important talk.

The telephone always rings/rang when you are/ were having a bath.

Note: (just) as; (just) when are used to say that two short actions or events happen/happened at the same time:

Mary always arrives/arrived just as I start/started work.

I thought of it just when you opened your mouth.

6. Time clauses introduced by while:
a) The two actions may be fully simultaneous. In this case either the simple past is found in both sentences or the past continues is found in the subordinate clause and the simple past is found in the principal clause. We may as well find the past continuous in both sentences:

Martha said nothing but looked from one face to the other while they discussed the plans.

She sat still as a statue while he was playing the sonata.

The child was drawing while her mother was ironing her clothes.

b) Partially simultaneous actions - the action of the subordinate clause serves as a background for the action of the principal clause which is a shorter accomplished action. The simple past is found in the principal clause and the past continuous in the subordinate clause:

He fell asleep while he was reading a book.

Dave broke his leg while he was playing football (or …while playing football)

While they were playing cards, somebody broke into the house.

7 The past continuous or the simple past is often used after such phrases as the whole day, all day long:

Grandfather was working in the garden all day long.

Grandfather worked in the garden all day long.

Future events

8. We use the past continuous to express an action which was supposed to take place in the near future due to a previous arrangement:

He said that Jane was leaving the country in two days.

Note: Notice the following sentence which is a stereotype. It is emotionally coloured, expressing irritation:

I thought you were never coming.

9. These sentences describe events intended to take place, but which didn’t happen:

I was going to phone you, but I forgot.

I was thinking of going to Italy this year, but I haven’t decided.

I was about to do it, but I started doing something else.

